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DESCRIBE THE I'RESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Murphy Building ( now part of thie Hochschild Xohn retail
complex ) is located at 320-22 West Lexington Street, situated
between two three-story masonry buildings and visually dominating
the streetsacpe of the block frontage. ""he masonry structure is
six stories hich, one bay wide with a shed roof sloping to the
rear (north) behind a massive overhanging cornice. The street
facade is sheathed with pressed red brick at the edges, laid in
qu01n like fashicn, 7:1, to the imposts of the large arched open-
ing at the fifth floor level The wall surface between the 1mfosis,
which return at the sides of the building, and the roof cornice,
incorporating the fifth and sixth floors, is sheathed with cours~d
terra-cotta paaels, laid in an ashlar rattern.

The first {loor of Murphy's has been greatly altered by the
addition of a ¢lass commercial store front, probably dating from
the leasing of the building by Hochschilid Kohn in 1917. However,
much of the original upper section of the first floor facade
remains behind the modern sign, including a cornice supported by
a row of scroll consoles resting on a flat panelled frieze, which
retains the original inscribed sign, " Murphy Building". The
consoles are surmounted by a limestone «ornice consisting of a
stylized egg and dart bed mold, a flat corona with a narrow torus
fillet and a cyma-reversa crown mold. A tall transom band runs
the full width of the recessed bay, capped with a pressed tin
cornice composed of a flat fascia, cyma-reversa and a cyma-recta
crown meld following the polygonal projecting bay window unit
above. The outside edges of the ground floor facade are defined
by a rusticated coursed granite pedistal. with brick quoins.

The second, third, fourth and fifth stories are enclosed witl.in
a tall, slender compound arched opening. The second through the
fourth floors are all similar in design, consisting of a three
part projecting polygonal bay window unit, the three divisions
seperated by slender banded reeded columns of pressed tin with
modified Temple of the Winds capitals. The exterior framing members
of the windows are cased with pressed tin, with heavy molded
mullions dividing the central window and its transcm into three
equal lights. These mullions have been removed at the second floor
level but remain in the transom. All sections of the transom,
which extends over all three sections of the bay window, are
workable.

The quoined edges of the front facade at the second floor level
are enriched with cast terra-cotta masks above a broken scroll
pediment with an elaborate, inverted leaf keystone and a lotus
leaf bed mold. Below the pediment is an inset framed panel outlined
at the top and sides with a rinceau rope garland, and a vertical
pair of rondelles in relief, which are connected by line fold
garlands and terminate in an inverted hollyhock relief with a fruit
bougue. Similar bas-relief terra-cotta Jdecorations are applied balow
the imposts of the compound arch at the top of the fourth floocr
level. The third and fourth flcor bay windows are further enriched
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with pressed tin sculptured rope garlands at the edge of the
window and the brick gquoins.

The fifth floor window is recessed kehind the compound arch
and reflects its design, with the semi-circular window divided
vertically intc four parts. The roof of the projecting polygonal
bay- serves as & shallow balconey at this level, with an elaborate
wrought iron handrail. The arch has a panelled intrado, with the
extrado composed of a flat fascia, the rope garland mold continu=d
from the vertical below, two stepped fascias seperated by a string
of pearls, and a molded archivolt. The archivolt has a heavy key
with a bulbos, floriated grotesque. The spandrels of the arch are
enriched with scuplted Della Robia or rinceau carvings, and the

, corner edges repeat the terra-cotta linen fold garlands with in-

\ verted hollyhocks and fruit bouquets used below, slightly modified.
The fifth floor level is seperated from the sixth by a heavy molced
classical cornice that projects over the keystone of the arch
below and returns at the sides. The sixth floor has two pairs of
single light windows, each pair enframed with shouldered molded
architraves with draped swags over round stone piers seperating
the two windows. The piers have ball and flower bosses as deco-
rations. Carved cartouches and masks are placed at the edges of
the facade at this level, below the massive overhanging roof cornice.

The roof cornice, which also returns at the sides, is composed
of a bed mold, a tall frieze band with four recessed brick panels
defined by seven heavy scrolled bulbous consoles with floriated
grotesques, paired at the outer edges, used singularly within to
frame' the inset panels. Flater scrolled brackets, without the floral
decorations, are placed between the five single consoles, and a
continuous band of heavy dentils ties the entire row of consoles
together. Two of the heavy consoles are used to support the cornice
returns. The cornice band has a panelled soffit, flat fascia, cavetto
and a cyma-recta crown mold.

The sides of the six story building are exposed red brick,with

. 1/1 double hung windows set into undecorated rectangular openings.

Because of the numerous alterations to the interior during its
life as a retail store with executive offices on the upper floors,
little of the original fabric remains, except for the wood framing
of the semi-circular window in the fifth floor, which is located

( in two offices, the dividing partition falling in line with the
central mullion.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Murphy Building is architecturally one of Baltimore's
best examples of the eclectic Commercia! Style popular between
1875 and 1915 for larger scale retail and office construction.
The applied terra-cotta decoration is ,ome of the finest in
the city. The design of the four story -=all arched central bay
with its projecting polygonal bay windov unit creates a skeletal
silhouette of delicate proportions cont:rary to the massive scale
and bulk of the six story structure. Visually, the Murphy
Building dominates the entire streetscape and adds considerably
to the architectural melange that predoninates in the downtown

shopping area.
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FIGURE

MURPHY BUILDING

320-22 West Lexington

SOURCE: DEPT. OF PLANNING




B-2281 Demolished
Hochschild Kohn Annex (The Murphy Building)

320-322 West Lexington Street
Sanborn Map
Baltimore 1890 vol. 2, Sheet 41_a
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The building is one bay wide and six stories high, The building and foundation
walls are brick. Building walls are decorated with terra cotta moldings and
rinceau,

The first story facade is punctuated by a flat plate glass store, window to the
right of the facade, To the left are flat wood doors in a recessed entrance,
These doors are surmounted by a single light, flat transom.

The 2nd and 3rd and 4Lth story facades have a continuious bay window in common,
The second story facade has a 3 light window surmounted by a 3 light transom.
The third story facade bay has two single light outer windows surmounted by
respective single light transoms. The three light center window is surmounted
by a tripartite transom. The Ath story ficade repeats the fenestration of the
3rd story facade,

The 5th story facade is punctuated by a recessed full=arched window with nine
full lights, that mirrors the full arch that frames the entire bay to the 5th
story. The arch features decorative terra-cotta and stone work. A shallow
balcony projects from the 5th story window in the top of the bay window below.
The balcony is delineated and decorated with a decorative iron railing.

The sixth story facade is punctuated by four flat single light windows separated
by stone mullions and decorative columns.

Fenestration is syﬁgtrical throughout the facade. The cornice is supported by 1l
decorative brackets, dentals, and other decorative motifs., The roof is flat,

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Architecturally significant as one of the unrivaled examples

of an ecglectic architectural style in the C.B.D.
ighly ornate, the building is infused with the discipline

Although

of the commercial style and in that way is historicdlly sig-
nificant as a unique visual reference to the conflicting atti-
tudes and ideas in architecture at the beginning of the 20th

century c.

191C.,

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created
by an Act of the Maryland Legislature, to be found in the
Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA,

1974 Supplement.

The Survey and Inventory are being prepared for information
and record purposes only and do not constitute any infringe-
ment of individual property rights.

RETURN TO: Maryland Historical Trust
The Shaw House, 21 State Circle
Annapolis, Maryland 21401
(301) 267-1438
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